

Prospectus for Fee Paying International Students

Updated February 2022

Contents

Information about Your Rights in New Zealand	3
Conditions of Enrolment	4
Application Procedure, including Conditions of Acceptance	5
Grant's Braes School Application to Enrol as an International Student	6-7
Agreement to Provide Tuition Services	8 - 11
Schedule of Fees	12
Fee Protection Policy	12
Fee Refund Policy	13
Offer of Place to International Student	15
Orientation and Support	16
Coping with Problems	17
Formal Complaint	17
Absence or Withdrawal from School	18
Circumstances in which Tuition may be Terminated	18
Accommodation Policy for International Students	19
Medical and Travel Insurance Policy	19
Summary of the Code of Practice	21 - 22

Information about Your Rights in New Zealand

Code

Grant's Braes School has agreed to observe and be bound by the Code of Practice for the Pastoral Care of International Students published by the New Zealand Qualifications Authority (NZQA). Copies of the Code are available on request from this institution or from the NZQA website International Students section.

Immigration

All students must meet the requirements of Immigration New Zealand to study in New Zealand.

Full details of visa and permit requirements, advice on rights to employment in New Zealand while studying, and reporting requirements are available through Immigration New Zealand.

Eligibility for health services

Most international students are not entitled to publicly funded health services while in New Zealand. If you receive medical treatment during your visit, you may be liable for the full costs of that treatment. Full details on entitlements to publicly funded health services are available through the Ministry of Health.

Accident insurance

The Accident Compensation Corporation (ACC) provides accident insurance for all New Zealand citizens, residents, and temporary visitors to New Zealand, but you may still be liable for all other medical and related costs. Further information can be viewed on the ACC website.

Medical and travel insurance

Before enrolment, international students must have appropriate and current medical and travel insurance (see "Medical and Travel Insurance Policy" on page 19) for the full period of the course, from leaving home to returning home.

Conditions of Enrolment

In addition to the conditions listed here, all conditions that are part of the contract with parents, the fees refund policy, and other school policies also apply.

- Students and parents/legal guardians must accept and abide by rules regarding behaviour and conduct that apply to all students. Unacceptable behaviour may result in the termination of tuition.
- 2. Students must observe the laws of New Zealand.
- 3. Students must observe the conditions of their visa. If a student breaks the terms of the visa the school will report the fact to the New Zealand Immigration Service, which may result in the student having to leave New Zealand.
- 4. Because class placements are decided on the evidence of assessment after arrival in New Zealand, all information given before enrolment about placement on courses and in classes is provisional. The school reserves the right to adjust placements and individual programmes at any time if it is in the student's interests to do so.
- 5. The student will attend the school on all occasions when it is open unless prevented by illness or other urgent cause.
- 6. Tuition may be terminated if the student fails to comply with the school rules or breaches the conditions of their visa.
- 7. Tuition fees will be paid in full before enrolment, or before enrolment is renewed (whichever applies).
- 8. All additional costs (as outlined in the school prospectus) will be paid promptly, as required.
- 9. The conditions of the Fee Refund Policy (on page 13) will be accepted.
- 10. All students are required to have travel and medical insurance (see "Medical and Travel Insurance Policy" on page 19) for the duration of their period of enrolment, from home to home. Students' families normally make their own insurance arrangements but schools check that they are adequate and cover the full period from the child leaving home to the child's arrival back home. A copy in English must be provided.
- 11. All international students in years 1 to 6 must live with their parents or legal guardians (proof of legal guardianship must be supplied).
- 12. All disputes will be dealt with in New Zealand law.
- 13. The schools policy on complaints will be used initially, but if this does not satisfactorily resolve the issues then the Dispute Resolution Scheme (DRS) will be used (see "Formal Complaint" on page 17).
- 14. Parents must inform the school of their address, telephone number, and e-mail address (whichever applies). The parents will advise the school of any change in their contact details.

Application Procedure, including Conditions of Acceptance

When you apply for information about enrolling your child at Grant's Braes School, we:

- Verify your child's eligibility to attend.
- Give you this Prospectus.
- Check and photocopy your child's passport.
- Check and photocopy visa documentation.
- Arrange an interview for you with the principal.

At the first interview with the principal, we discuss the possibility of enrolment. If we offer you enrolment, we:

- Receive payment of the fees from you and give you a receipt.
- Complete the Offer of Place form (see "Offer of Place to International Student" on page 15)
- Make sure you have a copy of the Agreement to Provide Tuition Services for you to read, sign, and return to the school.
- Give you a short tour of the school.

For acceptance on the roll of Grant's Braes School, your child must be living with a parent.

You must apply to Immigration New Zealand for a visa naming Grant's Braes School (this may take 2-3 weeks).

Once you have the visa, you must contact the school and arrange a second interview with the principal. At this interview, we:

- Take a photocopy of the visa.
- Complete the Enrolment Form.
- Receive a signed copy of the Agreement to Provide Tuition Services.
- Arrange a starting date and (provisional) placement for the student.
- Tell you the uniform and/or stationery requirements.

Grant's Braes School Application to Enrol as an International Student

Student Detail	ls			
Family name o	f student:			
First name of s	tudent:			
Preferred name	e:			
Date of birth:			Ethnicity:	
Passport numb	er:		Visa Status:	
Date of first en	try into New Ze	ealand:		_
Name(s) of pre	vious school(s) in New Zealand:		_
Dates of attend	lance at those	schools:		_
•	international st	tudent wishes to enr	rol for: To:	_
Vaccinations (p	olease list):		Date Received:	
				_
				_
Policy" on page Please bring th	e 19) to cover t ese medical a	he period of study, f	ce (see "Medical and Travel Insurance from leaving home to returning home. policies to the interview so the school	
Parent Details	i			
Contact details	of parent/next	of kin in home cour	ntry:	
Address:				
Phone:		Mob	ile:	

eMail:				
Details of the parent v	with whom the student will	be living:		
Name of parent:				
NZ address:				
Phone:	Mo	obile:		
eMail:				
at the school. Does the	expects to be able to meen any special details:	al learning Yes	or behavioural needs? No (please circle)	nrolled
ii yes, piease suppiy	details:			
I have been informed International Students	about and received a sums.	nmary of th	ne Code of Practice for No (please circle)	
I have been informed regarding fee protecti	about all costs involved won and refunds.	vith enrolm Yes	•	icy
•	y of the school Prospectus ad and understood them.	s and polic Yes	cies relevant to internation No (please circle)	nal
	od, and accept the policies at Grant's Braes School,			
I agree that all dispute	es will be dealt with in acc	ordance w	ith New Zealand law.	
I confirm all the inform	nation contained in this ap elief.	plication is	s true and correct to the	best of
I acknowledge that if the school may termin	I have provided false infor nate the enrolment.	mation or	withheld relevant informa	ation,
I will inform the school	ol if there are any changes	to the det	ails of this application.	
Signed by Parent:				
Name of Parent:				

Date:	
Agreement	to Provide Tuition Services

Agreement to provide tuition services between Grant's Braes School Name of Applicant:	ol and the Applicant:
Traine of Applicant.	
Name of Student:	
Address of Applicant:	
The Applicant is the parent of	(the 'Student'). The
Applicant has applied for tuition of the Student in New Zealand and	wishes the Student
to attend Grant's Braes School (the 'School'). The School has agree	ed to enrol the
Student subject to the terms and conditions in this agreement.	

Grant's Braes School's Obligations

- Grant's Braes School has agreed to observe and be bound by the Code of Practice for the Pastoral Care of International Students published by the New Zealand Qualifications Authority (NZQA). Copies of the Code are available on request from this institution or from the NZQA website International Students section.
- The School shall provide tuition in accordance with that accorded to domestic students. Grant's Braes School follows the New Zealand curriculum.
- The School will assess the Student's levels in English and other subjects to determine acceptance and course placement.
- The School will only accept international students who live with their parents or are in accommodation approved by the School.

The School shall use its best endeavours to ensure the safety, health and well-being of the Student but shall not be liable for:

- Any damage or harm caused to the Student or the Student's property while attending the School.
- Any damage or harm caused to the Student or the Student's property arising out of the Student's accommodation.
- Any damage or harm caused to the Student or the Student's property outside normal school hours. In the case of the Student's property, the School shall not be responsible for any damage to such property that may occur outside the operating school premises.

The Applicant's Obligations

The Applicant shall:

- Pay to the School the tuition fees in the manner agreed to by both parties.
- Agree to provide the School with academic, medical or other information relating to the well- being of the Student as may be requested from time to time by the School.
- Ensure that the Student will accept and abide by the School's rules and all instructions given by members of staff.
- Ensure that the Student will accept and abide by the School's decisions regarding accommodation suitability and rules regarding accommodation.
- Ensure that the Student will attend the required classes on all occasions when the School is open unless prevented by illness or other urgent cause.

 Accept the right of the School to terminate this agreement and inform Immigration New Zealand if the Student fails to comply with the Ministry of Education's attendance requirements.

Authorisations

The parents of the Student who have signed the application for tuition on behalf of the Student irrevocably appoint and authorise the Principal of Grant's Braes School (or such other person as may be appointed by the School Board of Trustees) to:

- Receive information from any person, authority, or corporate body concerning the Student including, but not limited to, medical, educational or welfare information.
- Provide consents in respect of any activity carried out and authorised by the School.
- Provide consents that may be necessary to be given on the Student's behalf in the event of a medical emergency where it is not reasonably practicable to contact the Applicant.
- If applicable, advise the Student's Designated Caregiver of all matters and information required to be provided to parents of any student and agree to appoint the Designated Caregiver as their agents in New Zealand to receive such information in substitution for the Applicant.
- To take whatever steps are necessary to ensure the Student complies with school rules and policies as set down by the School.
- To obtain at any time from any person or entity any information required to process and/or accept the application for tuition or to perform or complete the School's various obligations under this agreement. The Applicant authorises any such person to release to the School any personal information that person holds concerning the Student/Applicant.

Limitations of Liability

 In no event shall the School liability exceed an amount equal to the amount of tuition fees paid by the Applicant.

Termination

- Either party may terminate this agreement with 5 (five) days' written notice.
- Upon termination of this agreement, refunds will be made in accordance with the School's Fee Refund Policy.

Miscellaneous

Nothing in this agreement limits any rights the Applicant and/or the Student may have under the Consumer Guarantees Act 1993.

It is acknowledged that the stand-down, suspension, and exclusion of students provisions as set out in Part II of the Education Act 1989 shall apply to the Student in New Zealand. Any decision under these provisions to stand-down, suspend, or exclude the Student shall terminate this agreement and the Fee Refund Policy will apply. The parents will have no claim for damages for any compensation if this agreement is terminated in these circumstances.

Force majeure: Neither party shall be in default or in breach of their obligations under this agreement to the extent that the performance of those obligations is prevented by an event of force majeure. Force majeure means an event beyond the reasonable control of the party seeking to rely on force majeure.

Governing Law: This agreement shall be construed and take effect in accordance with the domestic laws of New Zealand. In relation to any legal action or proceedings arising out of or in connection with this agreement the Applicant irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts of New Zealand, and agrees that proceedings may be brought before any court including any forum constituted under the Arbitration Act 1908 within New Zealand and waive any objection to proceedings in any such court or forum constituted under the Arbitration Act 1908 within New Zealand on the grounds of venue or on the grounds that the proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum.

Entire Agreement

This agreement shall consist of:

- The Application to Enrol as an International Student;
- The Agreement to Provide Tuition Services;
- The International Student Prospectus including the refund and fee protection policies.

This agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties and overrides any prior promises, representations, understandings or agreements.

The terms of this agreement may be changed at any time by the School in writing to the Applicant and any such change in terms shall be notified to the Applicant in writing.

Notices given in writing will be given to the addresses set out in the application forms. Those sent by post shall be deemed to have been received 5 (five) days after posting.

The Privacy Act

Acknowledges that:

Personal information of the Applicant and/or Student collected by the School may be held, used, and disclosed to third parties to enable the School to:

- Process the application for tuition
- Provide tuition to the Student
- Provide the Student and/or Applicant with advice or information concerning products and services the School believes may be of interest to the Student and/or Applicant; and
- Communicate with the Student and/or Applicant for any purpose.

All personal information provided to the School will be held by Grant's Braes School at 137 Belford Street, Waverley, Dunedin 9013. Phone 03 454 4717.

Failure to provide any information in the application for tuition may mean the School is unable to process the application.

The Student/Applicant has the right under the Privacy Act 1993 to obtain access to and request corrections of any personal information held by the School concerning them.

Immigration

All students must meet the requirements of Immigration New Zealand to study in New Zealand.

Full details of visa and permit requirements, advice on rights to employment in New Zealand while studying, and reporting requirements are available through Immigration New Zealand.

Eligibility for health services

Most international students are not entitled to publicly funded health services while in New Zealand. If you receive medical treatment during your visit, you may be liable for the full costs of that treatment. Full details on entitlements to publicly funded health services are available through the Ministry of Health.

Accident insurance

The Accident Compensation Corporation (ACC) provides accident insurance for all New Zealand citizens, residents, and temporary visitors to New Zealand, but you may still be liable for all other medical and related costs. Further information can be viewed on the ACC website.

Medical and Travel Insurance

Before enrolment, international students must have appropriate and current medical and travel insurance (see "Medical and Travel Insurance Policy" on page 19) for the full period of the course, from leaving home to returning home.

Execution

- I have read and understood the terms set out in this agreement, including the attached schedule, and agree to them.
- I acknowledge that the provision of false information or the withholding of relevant information may result in the termination of enrolment.

Signed by Applicant:	
Signed by School:	
Designation:	
Date:	

Schedule of Fees 2022

Grant's Braes School International Student Annual Tuition Fee covering teaching and operating costs:	\$6000.00
Crown fee	\$373.35
Administration fee	\$400.00
Special tuition ESOL	\$2 400.00
Subtotal:	\$9 173.35
GST:	\$1 376.00
Total per year:	\$10 549.35
Total per 10-week term:	\$2 637.34

All fees are shown in New Zealand Dollars (NZD).

Upon payment or part-payment of the fees and levy, the school issues a receipt which can be forwarded to Immigration New Zealand, who will issue a Student Permit for the dates stated.

Additional fees

Additional fees will be charged for extra services, such as:

- out-of-school music lessons and instrument hire stationery
- uniform
- class visits and activities.

Fee Protection Policy

The income derived from foreign fee paying students must be protected against the possibility of an interruption to the course. Internal procedures assist the school in monitoring income and expenditure to ensure that money is controlled appropriately.

- These fees are separately coded and audited.
- These fees are not spent in advance on the premise that future students will attend the school.
- Fees are accrued forward each month and the income is spread across the year's financial reporting.
- Monthly reporting to the board details both income and expenditure and is monitored closely.
- The board holds sufficient reserves to be able to refund the student's fees if necessary (see "Fee Refund Policy" on page 13) or because the school is unable to provide or continue a course or programme.

Fee Refund Policy

If your child withdraws from their course of study before the completion date, you may be eligible for a refund of tuition fees. The school will always investigate your claim for a refund and act fairly towards you.

The school is not obliged to refund fees if your child:

- Has been asked to leave the school because of misbehaviour or poor attendance.
- Wishes to transfer to another educational institution for any reason.
- Has special needs that you did not explain to the school on the enrolment form.

The school will consider refunding all or part of your fees if:

- There are special circumstances, for example, the child has a serious illness or accident, or you need to return home because of the death of a family member. You will need to supply proof.
- Your child gains permanent residency during the course. You will need to provide documentation of the residency within 14 days of it being granted.
- The school is closed for a period of one week or more due to force majeure. (Force majeure means an event beyond the reasonable control of the school, such as snow, earthquake, etc.)'
- If Grant's Braes School ceases to be eligible to host International Fee Paying Students
- The student fails to obtain a study visa

Full or partial refund of fees:

You must apply in writing to the principal explaining the special circumstances of your claim within one month of your child's last day at school (or within one month of your child gaining permanent residency). If your child is leaving, you must also complete the official leaving process (see "Absence or Withdrawal from School" on page 18).

- If you apply for a refund **before** the course starts, the school will refund the fees in full, less an administration fee of NZD\$400.
- If you apply for a refund **after** the course starts (i.e., in terms 1 or 2), but before the second half of the course (i.e., terms 3 & 4), the school will refund the fees in full, less:
 - An administration fee of NZD\$400
 - Costs to the school already incurred for tuition
 - Components of the fee already committed for the duration of the course
 - Specialist fees (if applicable)
 - Appropriate proportions of salaries for teachers and support staff (if applicable)
 - Costs already incurred for the use of facilities and resources
 - Any other costs already incurred.
- If you apply for a refund **after the second half** of a course, the school will usually not refund the fees unless there are special circumstances (e.g., death of a close family member, serious illness, or accident).

Payment of refunds

The school will only refund fees directly to you or to an agent with written authority from you. The school will never refund fees directly to the student.

13

• • •	dge that I have read and fully understand the terms and nt's Braes School Fee Refund Policy.
Signed by Applicant:	
Signed by School:	
Designation:	
Date:	

Immigration New Zealand will be notified if any student ceases to attend Grant's Braes

School for whatever reason.

Offer of Place to International Student

Student Details		
Family name of student:		
First name of student:		
NZ address:		
Parent Details		
Family name of parent:		
First name of parent:		
Overseas address:		
Course Details		
Course name:		
Course dates:	Start:	Finish:
Course fee:	NZD:	Finish:
	nglish language and	vel Insurance Policy" on page nome to returning home.
Accommodation Details		
) Parent) Designated Caregiver	Homestay
Provider Details - Grant's B Grant's Braes School 137 Belford Street, Wa Dunedin 9013. Phone 03 454 4717		o the Code of Practice.
Amount received:	NZD: Re	ceipt No:
Signed on behalf of Grant's B	raes School:	
Position held:	Date: _	

Orientation and Support

The staff member responsible for International Students and ESOL programmes (English for Speakers of Other Languages) is the main person responsible for the orientation of the students and their ongoing welfare within the school community. This is done in close liaison with the classroom teacher and the principal. Grant's Braes School's liaison person is Gareth Taylor (principal).

An initial orientation will be done before or during the enrolment interview with the prospective student and parents. On the student's first day, the student will be met by the principal and shown to the classroom. All students are mainstreamed immediately upon arrival with a small group withdrawn for further orientation, English testing, and teaching as required.

The classroom teacher is responsible for ensuring the new student has a buddy group consisting of two or more other students whose role is to help the new student with daily routines, timetables, and activities during the breaks. The teacher also ensures that your child knows where to find the sick bay, toilets etc.

An ESOL Learning Assistant will be assigned to the student and will receive 3.5 hours of specialist tuition. A programme will be designed, in conjunction with the student's classroom teacher, to support the student socially and with acquisition of English. T

Translators are available if necessary. These may be another child or an adult, depending upon the situation and the requirements.

Parents/caregivers and students need to know that Grant's Braes School has an 'Open Door' policy. You can make an appointment to see the classroom teacher, or the ESOL teacher, to discuss any queries or concerns at any time.

Coping with Problems

We want you to be happy at Grant's Braes School. There are times however, when things do not go as smoothly or as well as we may like. Here are some ideas about what you can do about it. If you have a concern or complaint, contact the teacher involved and discuss the matter. If the matter doesn't involve a particular teacher, or you do not wish to contact the teacher concerned, or you are unhappy with the outcome of meeting with the teacher, contact the principal or deputy principal, or a member of the board of trustees.

We want to know about any worries or concerns you have. We will always take notes about your concerns and do our best to find solutions. If you do have a problem, please ask for help while it is still a little problem. Do not wait for it to become a big problem. If you are not confident that your English is good enough you can always bring a friend who has better English.

Formal Complaint

If an informal meeting does not resolve your concern or complaint, you can make a formal complaint. In the interests of fairness, any formal complaint or serious allegation must be made in writing and resolved in a timely fashion. All parties should respect confidentiality. Follow this process:

Responsibility	Action:
Complainant	 Put your concerns in writing, either as a signed letter or an email. Give as many details as possible, including details of efforts that have been made to resolve the issue. Include names and contact phone numbers. Send the letter marked Confidential to the school principal or, if the complaint is about the principal, to the chairperson of the board of trustees. The contact details are available from the school office.
Principal (if complaint is about a staff member)	 Acknowledge receipt of the complaint in writing or by email to the complainant. Give a copy of the complaint to the staff member concerned. Inform the chairperson of the board of trustees.
Board chair (if complaint is about the principal)	Acknowledge receipt of the complaint in writing or by email to the complainant. Give a copy of the complaint to the principal.

If the interim response does not resolve matters, or the matter is deemed sufficiently serious, the Disputes Resolution Scheme (DRS) should be used. iStudent Complaints is an independent dispute resolution scheme established by the New Zealand Government to encourage swift settlement of contractual and financial disputes between international students and their education providers in New Zealand. More information on this can be found by going to the following Wedsite:

https://www.fairwayresolution.com/istudent-complaints

Absence or Withdrawal from School

If a student withdraws from school

- The parents must write to the school before the student's last day, giving the date of the final day of attendance and the reason for leaving. The school must notify Immigration New Zealand.
- Depending on the circumstances, the Fee Refund Policy (on page 13) may apply.

If a student is not attending their course

- In the case of absences, the parent/guardian/caregiver must follow the normal school procedure of notifying the school in the morning of the first day of the absence, and following this up with a written note on the first day of the child's return to school. If the absence can be foretold, e.g., an appointment, then the school is to be informed in writing the day before the appointment or earlier.
- If the student is absent with no reason, then the school initially contacts the parents for an explanation. If the child is being truant from school, the school Visiting Teacher will have a meeting with the parents to rectify the situation. If the truancy continues, then a family meeting will be held and contingencies put in place. If this does not rectify the situation, then the enrolment will be terminated and Immigration New Zealand notified.
- If the student does not attend for more than twenty consecutive school days then he school will, in writing, notify the parents/caregivers that the enrolment has been terminated and will notify Immigration New Zealand. However, if the parents have previously notified the school in writing that the child will be absent for a period of time, with the full reason for the absence, the place shall be held, providing all fees have been paid in full, as required.
- If the student is withdrawn from or ceases to attend the school, the board of trustees will notify Immigration New Zealand.

Circumstances in which Tuition May Be Terminated

The school may terminate the enrolment at its discretion if:

- The child is absent or consistently truanting from school.
- The enrolment application is found to be inaccurate in any way.
- The child's behaviour is unacceptable, and attempts to resolve it have not succeeded in the opinion of the school, after the following process:
 - If the child's behaviour is deemed unacceptable, then a meeting with the child, the parents/caregiver, and the school will be arranged.
 - If the behaviour does not improve, written notification will be given to the parents warning of the danger of termination of the enrolment.
 - If there is no further improvement, the parents and the student will be notified in writing that the student must leave at the end of that term, or earlier if the school decides, and will not be eligible to return the following term.

An acceptable level of behaviour means following the school rules. Upon termination of enrolment, the board of trustees will notify Immigration New Zealand.

Accommodation Policy for International Students

All year 1-6 international students enrolled in New Zealand schools must be living with their parents. A parent is defined as a person who is legally responsible for the child, and that the child normally lives with in their own country.

It is the school's responsibility to determine the living situation of the student.

Living with parents

When a child is living with their parent(s), the school:

- Asks for the child's birth certificate, passport, and the parents' passports.
- Compares the identification documents and checks passport photos.
- Checks and records the parents' passport visa/permit dates to ensure that they
 end after the student's period of enrolment. If not, the expiry date is noted and
 parents are required to supply renewal details at the appropriate time.

The Code of Practice for the Pastoral Care of International Students **does not** recognise any papers signed by overseas courts or lawyers stating that parents have appointed another person as a legal guardian of their child. **There are no exceptions.**

Medical and Travel Insurance Policy

All students must have acceptable, appropriate, and current medical and travel insurance for the **full** duration, i.e., from home to home, of their planned study **before enrolment**, as specified in the Code.

- "Acceptable" insurance complies with the Code and is acceptable to the school.
- "Appropriate" insurance refers to private insurance policy, and should meet the following guidelines:

Length of cover:

The policy should cover the full duration of the planned study including any holiday breaks taken. ACC provides cover for all people in New Zealand for injuries and accidents, but not if they occur overseas, so students taking holidays out of New Zealand during their study must be covered by their private insurance policy.

The policy must cover:

- Travel: delays, missed flights, and any medical expenses incurred during travel into or out of New Zealand.
- Health cover: (an unlimited sum insured)
 - All medical expenses for hospital treatment due to illness or injury (in excess of ACC cover)
 - Medical evacuation related to serious injury or illness
 - The cost of family members' travel if the student suffers serious illness or injury
 - Emergency dental treatment
- Personal liability: negligence causing injury (including death) to another person, or damage or loss of property; and false arrest and wrongful detention.
- Repatriation: if the student's study plans are interrupted due to injury or illness that requires them to return home.
- Death: in the event of the student's death

- The repatriation of their body, or their funeral expenses
- The travel costs for family members.
- Search and rescue: any search and rescue operation performed to find the student.

Grant's Braes School advises all prospective students of the standard wording as set out in the Code of Practice. See Information about Your Rights in New Zealand (on page 3).

Students purchasing insurance should purchase insurance cover at the time of fee payment and before they leave their home country.

If the insurance is provided from a New Zealand company, policy details should be provided in the student's first language where possible.

In the case of overseas policy providers, students must provide the school with the policy details in English, before the student attends classes.

Verification of policies

In accordance with section 7.4 of the Code and Code Guidelines, Grant's Braes School verifies all policies before enrolment, and checks that:

- The insurer/re-insurer is a reputable and established company with substantial experience in the Travel Insurance business, and has a credit rating no lower than A from Standard and Poors, or B+ from A M Best.
- The insurer is able to provide emergency 24-hour, 7 day per week cover.
- Students have a "certificate of currency" and policy wording from the insurance company stating that the student has purchased the cover for the duration of the planned period of study. The certificate and policy wording must also detail medical sums insured, repatriation benefits, etc. It should confirm that the policy is consistent with the guidelines above.

If a student does not have appropriate and current medical and travel insurance cover, the school must:

- Advise the student of the medical and travel insurance requirement.
- Provide the student with a default policy or policy choices which meet the requirements of the

The cost of default insurance will be met by the student.

Recording of policy details

For each student, the school takes a copy of their medical and travel insurance policies (thus retaining a record of the insurer's name, the policy number, and the policy start and end dates).

Summary of the Code of Practice

Introduction

When students from other countries come to study in New Zealand, it is important that those students are well informed, safe, and properly cared for. New Zealand educational providers have an important responsibility for international students' welfare. This pamphlet provides an overview of the "Code of Practice for the Pastoral Care of International Students" (the Code), and provides a procedure that students can follow if they have concerns about their treatment by a New Zealand educational provider or agent of a provider.

A summary of the Code of Practice for the Pastoral Care of International Students

The Code sets standards for education providers to ensure that:

- High professional standards are maintained
- The recruitment of international students is undertaken in an ethical and responsible manner
- Information supplied to international students is comprehensive, accurate, and up-to-date
- Students are provided with information prior to entering into any commitments
- Contractual dealings with international students are conducted in an ethical and responsible manner
- The particular needs of international students are recognised
- International students are in safe accommodation
- All providers have fair and equitable internal procedures for the resolution of international student grievances

Full details of what is covered can be found in the Code itself. Download the printable version of the Code of Practice including amendments 2019 (PDF, 736KB).